
 

 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, August 7, 2018 
Northcentral Technical College 

1000 W. Campus Drive 
Wausau, WI  54401 

Timberwolf Conference Center 
 

12:15 p.m.  Lunch 
   
1:00 p.m.     Call to order, compliance with Open Meetings Law (Wis. Stat. 19.81-19.88) 
             
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

 
II. PUBLIC INPUT 

A. Public Comments 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES   

A. Approval of meeting minutes from July 9, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approve the meeting minutes from the July 9, 
2018 Board of Trustees meeting.   
 
Voice Vote Required 

 

IV. REGULAR VOTING AGENDAS 

A. Approve Draft 3-Year Facility Plan  – Rob Elliott 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approve Northcentral Technical College’s 
draft Three-Year Facilities Plan 2019-2021. 

Voice Vote Required 

 

B. Additions: Antigo – Merrill Candidate Physical Ability Test (CPAT) Addition – Rob Elliott 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approve the Merrill Candidate Physical 
Ability Testing addition at a cost not to exceed $525,000 and request the WTCS State Board to do the 
same. 

Voice Vote Required 

 

 

 

 
1/62



 

 
 

V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. Approval of consent Voting Agenda 

 Personnel Report  

 Receipts and Expenditures   

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College District Board move to approve the Consent Voting 
Agenda including: 

 Personnel Report 

 Receipts & Expenditures  

Roll Call Vote Required 

 

VI. BOARD DEVELOPMENT 

A. Next Steps to IT Infrastructure Improvement Plan – Chet Strebe/Rob Elliott 
 

VII.   INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report 

 Board Dashboard Executive Summary and Year-End Report 2017-2018  – Handout – Vicki 
Jeppesen/Angie Servi 

 Business & Industry Annual Report – Darren Ackley/Brad Gast/Rob Elliott 

 Draft CEO Goals  

 Board Development Topics for 2018-2019 – Vicki Jeppesen 

 Comments from Informational Update 

B. Chairperson’s Report 

 WTC District Boards Association Summer Meeting Update – Paul Proulx  

 Establish WTCS District Boards Association 2018-2019 Committee Assignments 

 Annual Review of Policy 2.7 Conflict of Interest Declaration – Handout 

C. Information 

 Upcoming Meetings/Events  

 Advisory Meeting Minutes 

 Good News   

2/62



 

 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Approximately 3:00 CLOSED SESSION or immediately following the above Open 

Session) 
A. Adjourn Board into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85 (1) (c), (f) and 

(g) for the purpose of: 

 Approval of the May 1, 2018 and June 12, 2018 Closed Session Minutes. 

 Update regarding pending litigation. 

 Consideration of personnel matters. 
 

Motion:  Adjourn Board into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85 (1) (c), (f) and 
(g) for the purpose of: 

 Approval of the May 1, 2018 and June 12, 2018 Closed Session Minutes. 

 Update regarding pending litigation. 

 Consideration of personnel matters. 
 
Roll Call Vote Required 

 
IX. OPEN SESSION 

A. Adjourn Board into Open Session to take any action deemed necessary as a result of the closed 
session. 

Motion:  Adjourn Board into Open Session to take any action deemed necessary as a result of the 
Closed Session. 
 
Roll Call Vote Required 

  
X. MEETING ADJOURN 
Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin Open Meetings Law. 
 
Mission Statement:  Northcentral Technical College is the customer-focused, accessible provider of 
innovative life-long learning that builds a globally competitive workforce. 
 
 

3/62



 
 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
Monday, July 9, 2018 

Northcentral Technical College 
1000 W. Campus Drive 

Wausau, WI  54401 
Timberwolf Conference Center D100 

 
The Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees met on July 9, 2018 at the Wausau Campus.  
Chairperson Tom Felch called the meeting to order at 1:03pm. 
 

Roll Call: 
Douglas Faragher Joined via teleconference X Ruth Risley-Gray X 
Tom Felch X Dale Smith X 
Kristine Gilmore   E Maria Volpe    X 
Lee Lo                        X Paul Proulx       X 
Charlie Paulson                      X   

 
Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
PaHnia Thao reported the meeting was being held in compliance with Open Meetings Law 19.81-19.88 of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
Swearing in Ceremony 
Dale Smith, Ruth Risley-Gray, and Kristine Gilmore was reappointed to another term on the NTC Board.  
PaHnia Thao swore in Dale Smith and Ruth Risley-Gray, Jamie Allar notarized the Oath of Office.  Kristine 
Gilmore was excused from the July 9th Board meeting but, she was sworn in to office on June 27th.   

 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

A. Recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

A. There were no public comments 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. It was moved by Lee Lo and seconded by Dale Smith that the NTC Board of Trustees meeting 
minutes from June 12, 2018 be approved.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

IV. REGULAR VOTING AGENDAS 
A. Election of Chairperson 

Chairperson Tom Felch turned the meeting over to Vice Chairperson Paul Proulx to ask for 
nominations for Board Chair.  Dale Smith nominated Tom Felch as Chairperson.  Paul Proulx asked 
three additional times for nominations for Board Chair.  It was moved by Dale Smith and seconded 
by Lee Lo that the NTC District Board approves that the nominations be closed.  It was moved by 
Dale Smith and seconded by Lee Lo that the NTC District Board approves that Tom Felch be 
elected as Chairperson. Motion carried unanimously. 

4/62



 
B. Election of Vice-Chairperson 

Chairperson Tom Felch took over the remainder of the meeting and asked for nominations for 
Vice Chairperson.  Tom Felch nominated Paul Proulx for Vice Chairperson.  Tom Felch asked three 
additional times for nominations for Vice Chairperson.  It was moved by Charlie Paulson and 
seconded by Maria Volpe that the NTC District Board approves that the nominations be closed.  It 
was moved by Maria Volpe and seconded by Lee Lo that the NTC District Board approves that Paul 
Proulx be elected as Board Vice Chairperson. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

C. Election of Secretary-Treasurer 
Chairperson Tom Felch asked for nominations for Secretary-Treasurer. Paul Proulx nominated 
Maria Volpe for Secretary-Treasurer.  Chairperson Tom Felch asked three additional times for 
nominations for Secretary-Treasurer. It was moved by Dale Smith and seconded by Lee Lo that the 
NTC District Board approves that the nominations be closed.  It was moved by Lee Lo and 
seconded by Charlie Paulson that the NTC District Board approves that Maria Volpe be elected as 
Secretary-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Dale Smith that the NTC District Board approves the 
consent Voting Agenda: 

 New Automation Systems Technology Associate Degree Program 

 Receipts & Expenditures 

 Personnel Changes 
 
Roll Call Vote Ayes:  Faragher, Felch, Lo, Paulson, Risley-Gray, Proulx, Smith, Volpe.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

VI. BOARD DEVELOPMENT 
a. Setting the Stage for the Future of NTC – Jeannie Worden 
Jeannie Worden presented to the Board on enrollment trends.  Factors that will impact 
enrollments are demographic of high school enrollments, race/ethnicity, unemployment, program 
completion, and competition including employers/workplace.  60 Forward Initiative is an initiative 
lead by Wisconsin Technical College System, the Wisconsin Associate of Independent Colleges and 
Universities and the UW System with support from the Lumina Foundation that has set a goal that 
by 2027 60% of the population ages 25 – 64 will obtain a higher education credential beyond high 
school. 
 
NTC would like to share at a Board Retreat, strategies to increase FTEs and Completion. Board 
members indicated that an early morning and/or early morning on a board day in September 
would work best.  PaHnia will send out a doodle survey of a few dates. 
 

VII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
A. President’s Report 

 Agriculture Center of Excellence Update – Rob Elliott 
Rob provided an update to the Board and showed pictures of the addition to the Agriculture 
Center of Excellence.  Thank you to NTC Board Members for supporting and approving our 

5/62



programs and buildings.  This is what keeps NTC facilities updated.  These pictures are 
included in the official meeting minutes. 

 Marian University Update 
We hosted a K-12 Administrator’s Breakfast the last week of June and had an official signing 
with Marian University for our technology education partnership.  This agreement is for NTC 
Students who obtain their associate degree in one of nine programs within the School of 
Applied Technology and Engineering and then complete teacher training coursework with 
Marian University to earn their Bachelor’s degree and teaching license.  The purpose of this 
partnership is so that students would not have to leave our district to complete their teacher 
training. 
 

 Comments from Informational Update 
Regent Jerry Whitburn from UW Board reached out to Chet Strebe and Jeannie Worden to 
share best practices with UW Madison regarding NTC’s recent cyber security incident. 
 
The pizza lunch on behalf of the NTC Board has been scheduled for NTC staff who helped out 
during the cyber security incident as a token of appreciation. 
 
Will Hsu and the Hsu family coordinated a visit of Chairman Terry Gou, owner of Foxconn.  Lori 
Weyers and Jeannie Worden were invited to the reception and dinner with Chairman Gou and 
other business leaders.  Chairman Gou indicated that central Wisconsin can be the central 
export hub for ginseng.  NTC can look at ways to be a support for this opportunity. 
 

B. Chairperson’s Report 

 WTC District Boards Association Summer Meeting – July 12th – 14th, 2018 Northeast 
Wisconsin District – Green Bay, WI 

 Established 2018 – 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting Dates 
o August 7, September 18, October 23, December 4, January 15, February 12, March 12, 

April 2, May 7, June 11, and July 8. 

C. Information 

 Outcomes-based Funding Annual Report – Vicki Jeppesen/Angie Servi 
Angie Servi provided an update to the Board on Outcomes-based Funding. 

 Out of State Tuition Remission 

 Advisory Meeting Minutes (March, April, & May) 

 Upcoming Meetings/Events 

 Good News (May & June) 
 
VII. MEETING ADJOURN 

It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Lee Lo with unanimous approval to adjourn.  By 
consensus the meeting adjourned at 1:39pm. 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Maria Volpe, Secretary/Treasurer 
Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees 
 

6/62



Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law". 

7/62



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 

 
MEETING DATE: August 7, 2018 
 
TOPIC:  Draft Three-Year Facilities Plan 2019-2021 
 
POLICY: Wisconsin Statute 38.04 (10) requires each Wisconsin Technical College District to prepare and 
submit a Three-Year Plan to the Wisconsin Technical College System Board (WTCBS).  The plan must be 
approved by the District Board.  The plan will be accepted and reviewed by the WTCSB but no action will 
be taken. 
 
INTERPRETATION:  Northcentral Technical College’s Three-Year Plan is submitted for the  
District Board of Trustees review and approval.  
 
DATA/RESULTS:  The attached Draft Three-Year Plan 2019-2021 outlines changes that have been made to 
the potential projects for the current fiscal year.  Projects listed are proposed capital improvements, 
acquisitions, remodeling and new construction exceeding $50,000 but not greater than $1,500,000 
pursuant to s. 38.04 (10).  The Three-Year Plan informs the WTCS Office of potential plans but does not ask 
for the permission to proceed.  Each project must be approved on a project-by-project basis following 
requirements set forth in WTCS administrative policy. 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Regular Voting Agenda The Board approves Northcentral Technical 

College’s draft Three-Year Facilities Plan 2019-
2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
 
Signed                                           Dated ___July 30, 2018___ 

8/62



 

2018 1 

 

 

 
 

Draft 

Three-Year Facilities Plan 

Summary 

 

 

2019 – 2021  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Dr. Lori A. Weyers, President 

 
Northcentral Technical College 

1000 Campus Drive 
Wausau, Wisconsin 54401 

9/62



 

2018 2 

 

Executive Summary 
 
 
The Northcentral Technical College Board of Trustees understands the workforce needs 
of its businesses and industries, and the desire of its citizens to live in a safe 
environment.  Through constant contact with community members, community forums 
with stakeholders, and strategic planning, the College will ensure it is aligned with the 
future growth and innovation needs of our students, employees, and district 
communities. 
 
The College has established new goals to exceed 3,100 FTE’s.  The NTC Board further 
understands that the college’s goal can only be met through continuous quality 
improvement in the areas of program expansion, flexible delivery, rejuvenation of 
existing facilities, and construction of new training facilities. 
 
The College plans to make an emphasis in the following areas to achieve its goals: 

 
1. Remodeling and capital improvements of its 50-year-old facility in Wausau.  

Emphasis on program delivery methods and general aesthetics. 

 
2. Capital improvements of its 49-year-old facility in Antigo. 

Emphasis on program delivery methods and general aesthetics. 

 
3. Capital improvements of District regional campuses. 

Emphasis on program delivery methods and general aesthetics. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10/62



 

2018 3 

 

Project Summary 
FY2018 – 2019 

 
Additions/Acquisitions 
 
Antigo Single Site 
 

 Merrill Candidate Physical Ability Testing (CPAT) Addition ($525,000) 

 Merrill Electrical Power Distribution Land Acquisition ($400,000) 
 
Remodeling 
 
Wausau Campus 
 

 Ag Center Veterinary Science Lab Renovation ($250,000)  

 Antigo Campus IT Backup Server Remodel ($400,000) 

 CHS Auditorium Remodel ($925,000) 
 
Improvements 
 
Wausau Campus 
 

 A Handicap Parking Lot Replacement ($175,000) 

 B Parking Lot Patch/Seal Coating ($25,000) 

 Cafeteria Roof Replacement ($450,000) 

 CBI Road and Culvert Replacement ($125,000) 

 CHS ARC Center Furniture/Renovation ($75,000) 

 CHS Dental Dark Room Removal/Furniture ($25,000) 

 CHS 2014 Tiered Classroom Removal ($85,000) 

 CHS 2016 Tiered Classroom Removal ($75,000) 

 CHS 3016 Tiered Classroom Removal ($95,000) 

 Clock Replacement ($30,000) 

 E101 & E102 Chair Replacement ($50,000) 

 Fire Alarm Upgrades ($28,000) 

 Fleet Vehicles ($50,000) 

 General Facility Contingency ($100,000) 

 H117/118 Classroom Divider ($25,000) 

 Library Furniture/Updates ($200,000) 

 Lighting Upgrades ($50,000) 

 Maintenance Equipment ($100,000) 

 Restroom Door Operators ($60,000) 

 Sidewalk Replacement ($50,000) 
 
Regional Campuses 
 

 Ag Center Parking Lot Expansion ($60,000)  

 Antigo Classroom Renovation T104 ($50,000) 

 Merrill Electrical Power Distribution Utility Field ($325,000) 

 Merrill Parking Lot Resurfacing ($320,000) 

 Spencer Parking Lot Seal Coat and Stripping ($15,000) 

 Spencer CNA Lab ($40,000) 

 Phillips Parking Lot Seal Coat and Stripping ($20,000) 

 Phillips Exterior Staining ($35,000) 

 Phillips Landscaping and Drainage Repair ($25,000) 

11/62



 

2018 4 

 

Project Summary 
FY2019 – 2020 

 
Additions/Acquisitions 
 
Wausau Single Site 
 

 Diesel Center Land Purchase ($120,000) 

 Farm-to-Table Solarium Addition ($300,000) 

 Maintenance Warehouse Addition ($500,000) 
 
Remodeling 
 
Antigo Campus 
 

 Conference Center ($400,000) 
 
Wausau Campus 
 

 Civil Engineering Lab Renovation ($200,000) 

 E101 & E102 Renovation ($300,000) 

 Red Shed Remodel ($600,000) 

 Salon & Spa Renovation ($1,200,000) 
 

Improvements 
 
Wausau Campus 
 

 Auto Shop Exterior Door Replacement ($45,000) 

 C Parking Lot Seal Coating ($25,000) 

 CHS Corridor Painting ($75,000) 

 CHS Roof Top Exhaust Fan Replacement ($50,000) 

 General Facilities Contingency ($100,000) 

 Farm-to-Table Equipment ($400,000)  

 Lighting Upgrades ($50,000) 

 Maintenance Equipment ($25,000) 

 Handicap Door Operators ($40,000) 

 Sidewalk Replacement ($50,000) 

 South Property Fence ($125,000) 
 
Regional Campuses 
 

 Diesel Parking Lot Resurfacing ($250,000) 

 Merrill Gas Utility Field ($125,000) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

12/62



 

2018 5 

 

Project Summary 
FY2020 – 2021 

 
Additions/Acquisitions 
 
Wausau Single Site 
 

 Diesel Center Addition ($400,000) 
 
Remodeling 
 
Wausau Campus 
 

 Mortuary Science Renovation ($200,000) 
 
Improvements 
 
Wausau Campus 
 

 A Building Window Replacement ($75,000) 

 Auto Shop Roof Replacement ($400,000) 

 Auto Shop Service/Parking Resurfacing ($200,000) 

 C Parking Lot Resurfacing ($300,000) 

 C Roof Replacement ($320,000)  

 CHS Chair Replacement ($45,000) 

 E Parking Lot Resurfacing ($700,000) 

 F Building Air Handler Replacement ($100,000) 

 Fleet Vehicle Replacement ($60,000) 

 G Building AHU Replacement ($100,000) 

 General Facility Contingency ($100,000) 

 H Building AHU Replacement ($150,000) 

 Library Roof Replacement ($325,000) 

 Library Window Replacement ($50,000) 

 Lighting Upgrades ($50,000) 

 Maintenance Equipment ($75,000) 

 Sidewalk Replacement ($50,000) 
 
Regional Campus 
 

 Antigo Main Campus Roof Replacement ($800,000) 

 Antigo Wood Dust Collection Updates ($100,000) 

 Phillips Roof Replacement ($100,000) 
 

  

13/62



 

2018 6 

 

Board Summary 
 
 
 
 

FY2018-2019 
 
 

Additions/Acquisitions:  $1,325,000 

Remodeling:    $1,175,000 

Improvements:    $3,468,000 

Total:     $5,968,000 

 
 
 

 
FY2019-2020 

 
 

Additions/Acquisitions:  $   920,000 

Remodeling:    $2,700,000 

Improvements:    $1,360,000 

Total:     $4,980,000 

 
 
 
 

FY2020-2021 
 
 

Additions/Acquisitions Total:  $   400,000 

Remodeling:    $   200,000 

Improvements:    $ 4,100,000 

Total:     $4,700,000 

 

 
 

14/62



  

 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
MEETING DATE: August 7, 2018 
 
TOPIC: Additions: Antigo – Merrill Candidate Physical Ability Test (CPAT) Addition 
 
POLICY: Wisconsin Statute 38 – Technical College System, 38.14 District Board Powers – (2) Buildings and 
Equipment. (a) For the use of the district schools the district board may: (3)  
Construct, enlarge, or improve buildings.  
 
TCS 5.04 (2) (a) A resolution of the district board approving the additional or new facilities 
 
INTERPRETATION:  Additions to existing facilities requires Board approval.  
 
DATA/RESULTS:  At the March Board meeting, the Board approved the capital budget which included 
$500,000 for a new Candidate Physical Ability Testing addition to the Merrill Public Safety Center of 
Excellence.  This addition will provide 5,000 sq.ft. of conditioned space needed to conduct year round CPAT 
testing.  Since 1996, candidate physical ability testing has been providing fire departments with a tool that 
enables them to select and hire inherently physically capable individuals to their local fire departments.  
Lack of indoor testing sites require fire departments to send new recruits as far as Chicago, Illinois for 
testing.  The facility will provide year round testing for Wisconsin and our neighboring states.  The new 
facility will include eight essential stations that will test each candidates cardiovascular abilities, flexibility, 
range of motion, strength, and core training.  In order to begin construction in September, the College will 
be requesting WTCS State Board approval at its September Board Meeting.  The NTC Board is asked to 
approve the proposed expansion and request the WTCS State Board to do the same.  A packet evidencing 
compliance with the statutes will be submitted to the State Board with the application. 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Regular Voting Agenda BE IT RESOLVED that the Northcentral Technical 

College Board approves the Merrill Candidate 
Physical Ability Testing addition at a cost not to 
exceed $525,000 and requests the WTCS State 
Board to do the same. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
 
 
Signed      ____________   Dated:  July 30, 2018  

15/62



NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 

MEETING DATE:      August 7, 2018 
 

TOPIC:  Personnel Changes 
 

POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, shall 
not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either imprudent or in 
violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to be accredited. 
 

INTERPRETATION: NTC will follow Wisconsin Statute 118.22 (2) “…No teacher may be employed… except by a 
majority vote of the full membership of the board.  Nothing in this section prevents the modification or termi-
nation of a contract by mutual agreement of the teacher and the board.” 
 

DATA/RESULTS: A request is made to approve the following personnel changes: 
 

New Hires: 
1. Iddisui Adam – Associate Dean of General Studies  
2. Kristin Reincke – Marketing Coordinator  
3. Emily Stuckenbruck – Director of Academic Excellence 
4. Mai Xiong – Human Resources Coordinator  
5. Angela Cook – Custodian 
6. Jean Barlow – Accounts Receivable Specialist  
7. Brad Fuller – Information Technology Systems Administrator  
8. Ariel Loftus – Enrollment Services Assistant  
9. Katherine Oelig – K-12 Pathways Transition Specialist 
10.  Timothy Fetting – STEM Faculty  
11.  Andrea Hebert – Nursing Faculty 
12.  Leslie Jackson – Nursing Faculty 
13.  Amanda Paulson-Myrblom – Nursing Faculty 
14.  Melissa Swanson – Early Childhood Education Faculty 

 

Resignations: 
1. Michael Deedon – Accounting Faculty  
2.Mary Fronek – Assistant Farm Manager 
3. Nicole Gollon – Custodian 
4. Nathan Kalenske – IT Help Desk Technician 
5. Konmong Vang – IT Help Desk Technician 

 

Retirement: 
1.  N/A 

 

AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                                    (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of 
this date. 
 

Signed_______________________________________ Dated _________8/1/18           _______ 

16/62



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE: August 7, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Receipts & Expenditures 
  
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, 
shall not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either im-
prudent or in violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to 
be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will fol-
low Wisconsin statute 38.12 District Board Duties (2) “…All expenditures exceeding $2500 shall be ap-
proved by the district board.”  Also, in compliance with Wisconsin statute 38.12(4) District board duties, 
“The publication proceedings shall include a statement of receipts and expenditures in the aggregate.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: The following Status of Funds listing receipts and expenditures including operating trans-
fers in the aggregate is included for informational purposes as of June 30, 2018 (preliminary). 
 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Revenues: $95,950,662 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Expenses:  $93,720,446 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated    _July 30, 2018___ 

17/62



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017-2018 

Business & Industry and Continuing Education 

Division 

Annual Report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
18/62



 

 

 

The Business & Industry and Continuing Education Team 
 

 

Rachel Alwin                 Tracy Brewer  

Learning Coordinator, Continuing    Business Development Manager 
Education  
 
 

Amanda Brzezinski              Ashley Deaver        

Learning Coordinator, Business &      Business Development Manager 
Industry and Continuing Education 
 

    

Jared Eggebrecht                     Brad Gast  

Director, Business & Industry       Dean of Business & Industry  
          and Continuing Education 
 

    

Rhonda Hoffer        Cindy Malcolm  
Administrative Assistant,                    Assistant, Business & Industry 
Business & Industry          
 

 

Leslie Williams            Catherine Yang  

Continuing Education                           Assistant, Business & Industry 
 and Events Assistant                           and Continuing Education 
   

 

Brenda Zimmermann -Thorpe  
Business Development Manager 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19/62



 

Summary 

The economic environment of low unemployment and the industry needs for a well trained workforce had a 

significant impact on the NTC Business & Industry and Continuing Education Division (BICE).  There was an 

increased demand in our customized training services, consulting, and professional development offerings.  

This resulted in a very successful year for the division.  The division was able to successfully met employer 

demand and in doing so exceeded many metrics  

Key 2017 – 2018 Highlights 

 Delivered $1.6 in customized training 

 Ranked #5 in the WTCS in contract training (NTC is 8th in size) 

 Secured $581,329 in WAT grants for 2017 – 2018 

 Applied for and awarded an NTC record $730,735 in WAT grants for 2018 – 2019 

 Generated $184,930 in state aid from divisional FTE 

 Hosted 65 major conferences and events 

 Ranked #1 in the WTCS in Professional Development credits 

 Ranked #5 in the WTCS in outcomes based funding Category 7 – Workforce Training (7th last year) 

 Achieved the net cost neutral goal, completely covering all costs and expenses  

The team saw new individuals take on leadership roles and welcomed several new staff members.  Brad Gast 

accepted the role of Dean and Jared Eggebrecht accepted the Director of BI.  The team welcomed Ashley 

Deaver and Tracy Brewer as Business Development Managers and Cindy Malcolm as the BI Administrative 

Assistant. 

The entire BICE team thanks the Board of Trustees and NTC Leadership for your continued support of the 

division.  It is a pleasure to serve our area employers and provide a strong workforce for the NTC district.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20/62



 

 

FTE and Headcount 
 

The division experienced an increased demand in customized training and professional development 
during the past year.  Over 11,000 individuals received training, an increase of over 1,600 individuals from 
the prior year.  This resulted in an increase of 17FTE over prior year.  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

21/62



 

 

 

 

WAT Grants 

NTC continued to be a leader in securing valuable training dollars to invest in our local businesses.  The college 

has received over $2.8 million in Workforce Advancement Training (WAT) grants during the past 6 years.  NTC 

secured $588,329 the past year alone.  These dollars helped to train 1,336 employees across the district, 

providing valuable training in talent development, leadership, technical skills, and worker safety. 

 

Business and leadership topics included:  

 Team Building 
 Strategic Planning 
 Facilitation Skills 
 Problem Solving 
 Crucial Conversations 
 Time Management 
 Supervision & Leadership 
 Critical Core Business Skills 
 SMART Goals 
 Supervision Technical Diploma 
 Leadership Technical Diploma 
 Team Leader Training 
 Effective Communication 

 
Technical & Trades programs topics included: 

 AutoCAD 
 Tool Sharpening 
 NHLA Lumber Inspection 
 Supply Chain Certificate 
 Electromechanical (NTC MET trailer) 
 Electrical Motors and PLC 
 Electrical Troubleshooting 

 Training with Industry 
 5S Methods 
 Lean Sigma Certificate 

 
Safety programs topics included:   

 Confined Space 
 Hazmat  
 First Aid CPR w/AED 
 Emergency Medical Response 
 Fire Extinguisher Training 
 Electrical Safety 
 Forklift Safety 
 OSHA 10-Hour & 30-Hour 
 Driver Safety 
 Aerial Lift Safety 

 

$307,753 

$555,315 

$412,353 
$462,957 $485,110 

$581,329 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

WAT Grant Training

Grant Amount Number of Participants

Amount in WAT grants awarded 

to the college for 2018 – 2019, 

an all-time record 

22/62



Financial Performance 

Annual revenue increased with the increased employer demand for training.  Over $2 million of training 

services were offered in 2017 – 2018, a 15% increase over the year prior. 

 

 

 

$0  

Amount of distract taxpayer dollars used to fund BICE operations.  The 

division was cost neutral in 2017 – 2018. 

 

  

Conferences and Events 

 

New Initiatives 

 

BI Industry Meetings  

New this past year was the development of industry meetings to address the ongoing 

workforce and training challenges facing our district employers.  Over 130 district employees 

representing 70 businesses attended these events. 

Customized 
Training, 

$917,890 , 45%

Consulting and 
Technical 

Assistance, 
$452,665 , 22%

K12 Contracts, 
$275,059 , 13%

Professional 
Development, 

$362,002 , 18%

Rental, $45,840 , 
2%

FY2018 - $2,053,456

23/62



 All Campuses: Addressing the Workforce 

Shortage 

 Antigo Manufacturing Meeting 

 Medford Health Care Meeting 

Informational updates, opportunities for 

improvement, and business connections help 

provide direction and strengthen NTC Business and 

Industry’s ability to serve the ever changing needs 

of our district businesses. 

 

NTC Fusion 

NTC Fusion ran as a pilot program for FY2018.  Led 

by faculty in the Machine Tool and Welding areas, 

this innovative program provided incumbent 

workers with competency based training in 

technical and soft skills. 

 

Employers purchased cards pre-loaded with training credits and had the flexibility choose which 

employee(s) each week to gain the covered competency in Welding and Machine Tool. 

 

Key Results  

78 Employees trained 

26 competencies covered 

 

Based on the successes, NTC Fusion  

continue in 2018 – 2019 in order to 

provide employers with flexible 

competency based training for their 

workforce. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MY EMPLOYEES ENJOYED THE TRAINING AND 

THOUGHT IT PROVIDED A GREAT VALUE.  WE 

WILL DEFINITELY BE ATTENDING 

 [NTC FUSION]AGAIN! 
  Allison Brill   

Northwest Tool & Mfg. Co 

24/62



 

NTC Continuing Education 

 

Over 800 course offerings 

 

 

Conferences and events 

The division hosted 65 major conferences and events the past year.  These 
events helped bring over 2000 people to the NTC campuses. 
 
Sample Major Conferences 

 Garden Visions – 456 attendees  

 Leadercast – 299 attendees  

 Customer Service – 155 attendees  

 Women’s Community Conference – 359 attendees 
 
Guest Satisfaction 
  

 

 

4.63 Stars – Average guest satisfaction for NTC conferences (out of 5 stars) 

  

    

#1 NTC’s ranking in the  

        WTCS for professional 

        development credits 

 
 

 
When looking for a partner to help provide Crisis Intervention Team training to first responders, we had to look 

no further than NTC and their Continuing Education team.  This team provided exceptional service to our 

group ensuring we had the appropriate facilities, technology and classroom resources to deliver a high quality 

experience for our students.  Without them this training would not be possible.  The entire community is better 

served through their partnership with us.”  

Chief Deputy Chad Billeb, Marathon County Sheriff’s Office 

 

Amount of 

economic impact to 

our district from our 

conferences 

 

25/62



Strategic Partnerships / Business & Industry Clients  

The BI team believes in the strength of strategic partnerships. We’ve had the privilege to work 

with the following businesses / organizations over the past year through contract training 

projects.  

1st Call Explosive Solutions      273rd EN CO (SAPPER) 
Abbotsford School District      Abbyland Foods 
ADC Custom       American State Equipment 
American Wood Fiber      Ansay & Associates 
Antigo Food Pantry       Applied Laser Technologies 
Aspirus        Aspirus Langlade 
Aspirus Medford       Aspirus Wausau Family Medicine 
Blenker Companies       Bridge Community Health Clinic 
Church Mutual       City of Medford 
City of Wausau       Colby Metal 
CoVantage Credit Union      Creative Automation 
Crystal Finishing       Custom Steel, Inc. 
Domtar        EO Johnson 
Expera        Flink Builders 
Foremost Farms       Frontline Bldg 
G3 Industries       Goetsch’s Welding 
Granite Peak       Graphic Packaging 
Grayhill        Greenheck 
Ho-Chunk Gaming       Homme Home 
Insight        Interflex 
Iola Fire Department      J&D Tube Benders 
Jarp        Johnson of Merrill 
Kolbe & Kolbe       L&S Electric 
Langlade County EDC      Lincoln County Service Center 
Lincoln Wood Products      Linetec 
Marathon County       Marathon Plumbing 
Marathon Residential      Marshfield Glass 
Medford Chamber of Commerce     Medical College of WI 
Merit Gear       Mid-State Truck Service 
Mosinee Veterinary Clinic      Motor Service and Supply 
MP&C        MTE 
Multitek North America      NCWWDB 
Nestle Pizza       NICA Wisconsin 
Norlen        North Central Health Care 
Northern Regional Partnership     Northern Valley Industries, Inc. 
Nueske’s        Oldcastle BuildingEnvelope 
Pat Walker Trucking      PCA 
Phillips Medisize       Polaris Defense-Resilient Technologies 
Polywood Fabrication, Inc.      Potawatomi Carter Casino Hotel 
Prevention Genetics      Price County Economic Development Assoc. 
Price Electric Cooperative      Primrose Retirement Communities 
PSI        Regal Beloit 
River Valley Bank       Riverview Construction 
Roastar        Robbins 
Rocket Industrial       Ryan Manufacturing 
Sierra Pacific       Sonoco 
SpecSys, Inc.       Stibbe 
The Samuels Group       Thiessen Endodontics 
Trinity Lutheran ECLC      UAS Labs 
United Way       University of Minnesota 
Urban Steel       Veritas Steel 
Volm        Wadal Plastics 
WATEA        Waukesha Bearing 
Wausau Coated       Wausau School District 
Wausau Tile       Wausau Window and Wall 
Weather Shield       Weinbrenner 
WPS        Zelazoski Wood 

 

26/62



Draft CEO Goals 2018-2019 

1. Develop a strategic enrollment plan based on economic shifts, low 
unemployment and declining high school enrollment in the NTC district.

2. Implement phase 2 of program completion to include integrating and 
addressing the needs of part-time students.

3. Implement an Information Technology infrastructure plan.

4. Continue to build key strategic partnerships throughout NTC' s District:
a. Individual meetings with District Legislators;
b. Host K-12 Administrator meetings;
c. Continue my leadership role with the Entrepreneurial and Education Center 

(EEC) Board and Business and Industry partners.
d. Provide leadership to the Steering Committee for Economic Development 

for the greater Wausau-Marathon County region with other area CEOs and 
Chamber of Commerce.

5. Serve in leadership roles with the WTCS Presidents Association:
a. Incarcerated Individuals Task Force committee member;
b. Solutions for Part-time Adults Task Force committee member;
c. Student Services Administrators - President Liaison 

27/62



Committee Descriptions 
 
 
External Partnerships Committee 
This committee would work to better understand innovative initiatives, external challenges, and 
emerging opportunities for collaboration, while building understanding and strengthening 
relationships between trustees and local, state, and national leaders. The committee would 
dialogue with local, state, and national strategic partners including but not limited to: 
 

• K-12 leaders 
• Employer-partners 
• Chamber officials 
• County board members 
• Presidents Association 
• Higher education leaders 
• Association of Community College Trustees 
• Community and Faith-Based Organizations 
• Other stakeholders and partners 

 
Through its work, the committee would advocate on behalf of the colleges, as well as serve as a 
conduit of information, to help inform our ongoing advocacy efforts with policymakers. The 
External Partnerships Committee would receive periodic briefings from the chair of the 
Presidents’ Association External Partnerships Subcommittee, in order to facilitate and coordinate 
the work of the two committees. This committee would also be responsible for generating 
programming input for Association staff to develop for in-service sessions. Each district would be 
asked to appoint one to four members to serve as part of the External Partnerships Committee. 
 
 
 
Internal Best Practices Committee 
This committee would share and discuss best practices information internal to the technical 
college system on topics of interest to the members. Past topics that might be appropriate for this 
committee could include: 

 
• Board and Association best practices around new member orientation; 
• “Boardsmanship,” or how to be effective at the board table, legal and ethical 

parameters, and other skillsets; 
• Human resources and employee compensation best practices; 
• Student services best practices (mental health, veterans services); 
• Instructional services best practices (career pathways, credit for prior 

 learning, Promise programs); and 
• Other emerging trends and topics 

 
With support from staff, the committee co-chairs would be expected to set agendas, facilitate 
dialogue and small-group breakout discussions as needed, and solicit input from members on 
topics of interest or possible projects. Led by the co-chairs, the Internal Best Practices Committee 
would also be responsible for generating programming input, suggesting topics for Association 
staff to develop for in-service sessions. Each district would be asked to appoint one to four 
members to serve as part of the Internal Best Practices Committee. 
 
 

28/62



Bylaws, Policies and Procedures Committee  
The Bylaws, Policies and Procedures Committee, as set forth in Article IX of the Bylaws, reviews 
the Association’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures and recommends changes to the Board of 
Directors when appropriate. 
 
The Committee has additional specific assignments: 

• At the Board of Directors’ request, develop a select list of major issues on which the Board 
of Directors may request member consideration. 

• At the request of the Board of Directors, committee chair, or an individual unit member of 
the Association, review a proposed resolution or proposed change in the corporate 
bylaws, policies or procedures for the purpose of recommending whether the proposed 
language will accomplish the desired effect and/or whether the proposed change would 
require amendment of any other portion of the corporate bylaws, policies, or procedures. 

 
 
 
Awards Committee 
The Awards Committee has responsibility for identifying and recognizing: 

• Board Member of the Year; 
• Technical Education Champion (TECh) Award recipients; 
• Media Award recipients; 
• Distinguished Alumni of the Year; 

  
The Board of Directors shall approve an awards rating committee. Each unit member district will 
select its own member to review and rate nominations for the Association awards program. 
Members will serve in this role for one year and can be re-appointed indefinitely. The Committee 
will determine, select the recipients of, and deliver the corporation’s annual awards. The members 
will select award recipients by rating official award nominations, and Association staff will 
announce the nomination period for each award. At the end of the nomination period, the 
Association will provide committee members with a slate of nominees eligible for the award and 
with corresponding nomination materials. Committee members will rate the nominations 
according to criteria for each award. The Association will then tabulate the results of the award 
rating and announce the winner. When possible, awards will be presented at the next quarterly 
meeting of the Association.  Committee members will be expected to rate awards during a time 
period outside of the Association meetings. 

29/62



2018-2019 Technical College Representatives 

District Name: _____________________________________ 

Chairperson of the Board: 

Vice-Chairperson of the Board: 

Secretary of the Board:  

Treasurer of the Board:  

Board of Director Member: 

Awards Committee Representative: 

Bylaws, Policies, & Procedures 
Committee Representative: 

External Partnerships 
Committee Representatives: 
(Up to 4) 

Internal Best Practices 
Committee Representatives: 
(Up to 4) 

PLEASE INCLUDE A COPY OF YOUR 2018-2019 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE. 

Return to the District Boards Association office: ahanz@districtboards.org. 
30/62



 Board of Trustees Meetings/Upcoming Events - 2018-2019  Updated:  7/30/18  

 
Date 

 
Event 

D
o
u

g
la

s
 

F
a

ra
g

h
e

r 

T
o

m
 

F
e

lc
h
 

K
ri

s
ti
n

e
 

G
ilm

o
re

 

L
e

e
 

L
o
 

C
h
a

rl
ie

 

P
a

u
ls

o
n
 

P
a

u
l 

P
ro

u
lx

 

R
u
th

 

R
is

le
y
-

G
ra

y
 

D
a
le

 

S
m

it
h
 

M
a

ri
a
 

V
o

lp
e
 

2018           

July 9 Annual Organizational Meeting (Wausau) X X E X X X X X X 

July 12-14 WTC District Board Assn. Summer Meeting (Green Bay)      X    

Aug 7 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Sept 12 A Day for NTC Students (Medford)          

Sept 18 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau Campus)          

Sept 26 A Day for NTC Students (Antigo)          

Oct 11-13 WTC District Board Assn. Fall Meeting (Appleton)          

Oct 23 NTC Board & NTC Foundation Joint Lunch (Wausau) 
Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) 

         

Oct 24-27 ACCT Leadership Congress (New York, New York)          

Nov 15 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

Nov 29 Scholars & Donors Reception (3:30 – 5:30)          

Dec 4 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Dec 15 Mid-Winter Commencement (Grand Theatre)          

2019           

Jan 15 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Jan 16-18 WTC District Board Assn. Winter Meeting (Madison)          

Feb 12 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Feb 10-13 ACCT National Legislative Summit (Washington, D.C.)          

Mar 12 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Mar 13 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

Apr 2 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Apr 11-13 WTC District Board Assn. Spring Meeting (Fond du Lac)          

TBD Scholars & Donors Reception (3:30 – 5:30)          

May 7 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

May 9 A Day for NTC Students (Wausau)          

May 18 Commencement (Wausau West Fieldhouse (9:00 – 12:00)          

June 11 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

June 12 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

July 8 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          
 

31/62



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2018  Program Name: Mechanical Design Engineering 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Mike Sagstetter (Greenheck Fan Corp), Jeremy Gabor (Jarp Industries), Carl Dahm (Greenheck Fan Corp), 
Roger Clark (Imperial Industries), Shane Herdt (Imperial Industries), Theran Peterson (Wausau West High 
School), Troy Piskula (Luoma Design Systems), Jim Peterson (Enerquip), Richard Metzler (Siemens Energy), 
Luke Schultz (A&B Process Systems), Mike Koss (Rops & Cab Engineering), Sundar Ananthasivan (Wausau 
Window & Wall), David Williamson (A Team Machine) 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Bryan LaVigne (faculty), Brad Schinker (faculty), 
Laurie Schulz (faculty), Chris Severson (Dean, ScET), 
Tracy Brewer (Business Development Manager) 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Agenda 1: Those present introduced themselves and the organizations they represent. 

 Agenda 2: The minutes were reviewed. A sign-in sheet was circulated among attending advisory 

committee members. 

 Agenda 3: 

o NTC is pursuing a variety of new programs, including Electrical Power Distribution (Fall 2018), 

Gas Utilities (Fall 2019), and Civil Engineering (Fall 2019).  

o Expanding at Agriculture Center of Excellence including adding the Ag Center Student 

Engagement Center and the Robotic Feeding System additions. 

o NTC is building a new CDL facility near the Public Safety Center of Excellence. NTC has 

completed seven sections of the CDL program, with 51 students enrolled. 94 percent of 

students enrolled have obtained their Class A CDL. 

o NTC launched a new STEM Center; a facility developed to create an innovative, collaborative 

learning environment. The space will be used for tutoring, information on transfer 

opportunities for STEM Programs (academic advising), extended learning opportunities 

(internships, job shadows, industry speakers, capstone courses), cross-functional 

programming, community outreach, and maker space. 

o NTC now has student housing available, Timberwolf Suites. The facility is managed by a 

private organization. It has the capacity to house 150 students. NTC has seen an increase in 

enrollments, especially out of district, as students seek out that ‘college life’ experience. 

 Agenda 4: 

o Industry Trends 

 Overall, employers reported a strong market with high demand and record quarters 

projected. A few stated that certain industries were experiencing a slight softening as 

a wave of cautious growth follows tariff discussion. Many are hiring new employees. 

o Program Information 

 Enrollment Report: Spring 2018 has a total of 60 students enrolled among full-time 

and part-time students. Fall 2018 has 16 student applications. 

 Welding & Mechanical Design Competition (4.10.18): Four high schools were 

represented in this year’s competition. This is a team event that combines high 

school mechanical design students with high school welding students. The teams are 

given parameters and the students develop the designs. The high schools are 

32/62



responsible for acquiring the resources, which are typically donated by industry. 

Some teams built artistic projects, others created utilitarian projects. The winning 

team came from DC Everest High School. 

 Career Focused Day: The event included breakout sessions so students could listen to 

industry professionals. Student could pick from these seminars, including soft skills, 

employment benefits, and expectations of employers in interview situations. 

Students were required to go to the Job Fair afterwards. Feedback from students was 

very positive, many stating they wished break-out sessions were longer and they 

could have gotten more information and time for questions. 

 Nuts, Bolts and Thingamajigs (6.11.18): Veronica Hope and Laurie Schulz are 

conducting a camp for girls 6th grade – 10th grade. This is a grant funded, four day 

event. The girls will be designing a bird house using Solidworks, then manufacturing 

the bird house in Machine Tool and Welding. They will also have the opportunity to 

use the 3D Printer to produce parts. Laurie invited anyone who knows of a girl(s) in 

the required age group, who might be interested in attending, to contact her 

(schulzl@ntc.edu). 

 Adjunct Interest: Chris shared the need for adjunct faculty. It’s a great experience for 

students to learn from industry experts. There’s tremendous value-added to the 

program bringing the industry perspective into the classroom. If interested or have 

any additional questions, please contact Chris at seversonc@ntc.edu or Jessica at 

benton@ntc.edu. 

o Curriculum/Assessment:  
 Add-on Certificates: Laurie shared that NTC has several add-on certificates available 

to students. If students complete the Mechanical Design program and are looking for 
specific enhancements to their education, there are opportunities available. 
Annually, curriculum is brought before the advisory committee to discuss 
modifications that will best prepare the student for employment upon graduation. 
One example was the credit reduction to increase persistence and graduation rates 
while maintaining content rigors and career preparedness. 

 Review of Curriculum modifications for the associate degree: 

 Removed Excel 2016 Level 1 due to reduction of credits.  Excel skills will 

enhance a student’s skill set but are not required.  Other tools based 

classes (AutoCAD and SolidWorks) still remain in the program.   

o The advisory committee felt this was an appropriate change to 

program curriculum. 

 Removed Materials of Industry 1.  This class was a one credit class and it 

was combined with Materials of Industry 2 to make one 2 credit Materials 

of Industry class. 

o The advisory committee felt this was an appropriate change to 

program curriculum. 

 Removed Materials of Industry 2.  This class was a one credit class and it 

was combined with Materials of Industry 1 to make one 2 credit Materials 

of Industry class. 

o The advisory committee felt this was an appropriate change to 

program curriculum. 

 Added Materials of Industry class.  NTC combined Materials of Industry 1 

and Materials of Industry 2 to make one class that amounts to two credits. 

33/62



o The advisory committee felt this was an appropriate change to 

program curriculum. 

 Removed Fluid Power Systems 2 due to the reduction of credits and also 

due to the fact that these are specific skills that are good to have but not 

required. 

o The advisory committee felt this was an appropriate change to 

program curriculum. 

 Removed Fluid Power Systems 3 due to the reduction of credits and also 

due to the fact that these are specific skills that are good to have but not 

required. 

o The advisory committee felt this was an appropriate change to 

program curriculum. 

o Course Overview/Canvas: Bryan LaVigne gave a brief demonstration of the new learning 

management system, Canvas. He shared with the advisory committee the new module 

interface, including activities and course content progression. All course content will be 

delivered via Canvas June 2018. 

o Continuing Education/Business & Industry Initiatives 

 Tracy Brewer shared the role of Continuing Education and Business & Industry. They 

deliver customized training for incumbent work force on site. Training is designed to 

meet the needs of the organization. Business & Industry works closely with industry 

to increase productivity (Lean, 5S, process improvement). There are numerous 

continuing education and customized training opportunities available to industry. For 

more information, please contact Tracy at brewer@ntc.edu. 

 Chris Severson shared NTC has a Director of Adult Recruitment, Zach Popp. His role 
to connect with individuals and organizations to help identify credentialing 
opportunities. He will come on-site to discuss how to best navigate the enrollment 
and academic experience. For more information, or to schedule a meeting with Zach, 
please contact him at popp@ntc.edu. 

 Agenda 5: The next meeting will be scheduled for Wednesday, October 24, 2018; 4:00 PM. 

 Agenda 6: Chris gave a guided tour of the new STEM Center to interested advisory committee 

members. 

 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: May 4, 2018 Program Name: Certified Nursing Assistant 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Brad Beranek, HR Recruiter, North Central Health Care 

 Ann Faehling, Director of Nursing, Homme Home for the Aging 

 Mary Grundman, Staff Coordinator, Rennes Health and Rehab Weston 

 Becky Johnson, Assistant Director of Nursing, Dycora Transitional Health & Living 

 Ryan Locy, Administrator, Rennes Health and Rehab Weston 

 Mindy Meehean, Director of Nursing, Pine Crest Nursing Home 

 Shannon Repka, Aspirus Medford 

34/62



 Lauren Schrage, Talent Acquisition Specialist, Aspirus 

 Jill Scutcowski, Director of Nursing, The Bay at Colonial Manor 

 Jane Shidell, Bell Tower Residence 

 Julie Webb, Director of Nursing, The Bay at Eastview Health and Rehabilitation 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Janet Baumann, Associate Dean of Health 

 Ashley Deaver, Business Development Manager 

 Laura Hoffmeister, CNA Program Director 

 Stacy Kunz, Administrative Assistant – Health 

 Jennifer Sperl, CNA Faculty  

 Emily Steinbach, Learning Coordinator 

 Silvia Tzinoglou, CNA Faculty 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Students have moved into the new on campus housing, Timberwolf Suites. The college is preparing for full 

occupancy of 187 students in Fall of 2018. 

 The Spencer regional campus of NTC is adding a Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) bed lab. With increasing 
demand for CNA classes in Spencer, it was determined that a bed lab on campus was necessary.  

 Laura Hoffmeister has decided to step down as program director for the CNA program. Laura will remain a 
part of the CNA program faculty. Candy Weinzinger will be the new program director. Laura and Candy will 
be working over the summer to transition the role and Candy will start the position in Fall of 2018.  

 There are many CNA and Nurse positions open at area facilities. Many of the shifts that need to be filled 
are evenings and nights. 

 With the facilities present at the meeting, starting CNA wages range from $10.50/hour to $13.50/hour with 
some facilities starting CNAs higher based on experience. Most of the facilities also have pay differentials 
for evenings, nights, and weekend shifts. Facilities are providing a variety of incentives to retain 
employees.  

 Enrollment is down in many programs across Northcentral Technical College (NTC). This is partially due to 
the workforce being so strong. Programs with lower paying jobs are having a difficult time getting students 
into their programs. To work on recruiting students into these areas, NTC staff and faculty are participating 
in K-12 events, doing high school visits, hosting open houses, and marketing with mailers to high school 
students. 

 The School of Health Sciences leaders have been discussing having the CNA course be a prerequisite to 
starting the Medical Assistant program. They believe that this would be beneficial for both CNAs and 
Medical Assistants as the skills for both programs are so useful in providing great patient care.  

 The CNA program will be eliminating their workbook that has be used previously. This will be eliminated 
starting this summer. The instructors found that the workbook was too repetitive and added an 
unnecessary expense to the students. They will be adding an online discussion board in place of the 
workbook. 

 The proposed law to decrease the training hours for CNA programs in Wisconsin did not pass. The earliest 
that this legislation could go through now would be next year. Laura has a plan in place to decrease hours if 
this is a requirement in the future.  

 The NTC Wittenberg campus is teaming up with Homme Home to use their facility as a classroom and lab. 
This space is two full resident rooms with a shared bathroom. There is also a lounge area with Audio/Visual 
equipment. 

 The Wisconsin Caregiver Career Program started March 1 and is underway. NTC has about 32 students 
currently participating in this program and are seeing more enrolling every day. This program stemmed 
from the Department of Workforce and allows students to enroll in the CNA course at no cost. 

 Pearson Vue notified CNA training programs about a 65% increase in the testing fee. As of March 1 the 
testing price is $195 (previously $115). The state and soon after the state put out bids for a new testing 

35/62



service. Starting in September of this year, the state will be testing through a vendor called Head Master. 
The test will cost $125 through Head Master. 

 NTC has a Health Mobile Training Lab that is currently being used to host dementia and aging simulations. 
Facilities can work with Business and Industry Solutions at NTC to have this mobile lab come to their facility 
and have employees or community members go through the simulation. 
 

 

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2018 Program Name:  Wood Science 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Troy Brown – Kretz Lumber Company 

 Jeff DeLonay – Kolbe & Kolbe Millwork 

 Tom Gallenberg – Gallenberg Studio 

 Tim Kassis - Kretz Lumber Company 

 Ben Zelazoski – Zelazoski Wood Products 

 T.J. Morice – TNT Ventures 

NTC Staff: 

 Greg Cisewski-Dean, School of Advanced Manufacturing and 
Transportation 

 Susan Clark – Administrative Assistant 

 Katie Metko-Learning Coordinator 

 Travis Allen - Instructor Travis Allen - Instructor 

Other 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

  WOOD SCIENCE COMPETITION UPDATE:  The Wood Science Competition was taking place immediately 
following this advisory meeting.  Travis gave an overview of the approximately 14 competitors from area 
high schools.  The committee discussed the competition and the number of competitors which was lower 
than the past several years. The committee felt that the date of this year’s competition impacted the 
number of entries.  It was suggested, and all committee members agreed, that next year’s competition 
should be scheduled to give the high schools the best chance of completing their projects. Several of the 
high school competitors could not finish their projects in time for the competition due to high school class 
project requirements. All the high school instructors get a power point to advertise the contest for the 
upcoming year. D.C. Everest will be adding an Advanced Woodworking class back into their curriculum for 
the 2018-2019 school year. D.C. Everest’s participation will increase competitors for next year.  

 APPRENTICESHIP OPPORTUNITIES:  There was a discussion about apprenticeship in the forestry area and 
how this opportunity could be structured. Currently, the concentration of logging and forestry is at the high 
school level.  Nicolet College has also been considering a heavy equipment degree. The committee felt there 
was a demand for heavy equipment operators as well as forestry workers. Katie Metko gave the committee 
information on how an apprenticeship could work in these areas. Katie will gather information from Ben 
Stahlecker, the State Apprenticeship Representative. Ben will be asked to attend the next Wood Advisory 
Committee meeting to further explain apprenticeship to the group and how one could be structured to suit 
the needs of the employer and employee. 

 ENROLLMENT REPORT: Travis shared with the committee that we have five second year students that will 
be graduating in May and six first semester students.  We have always had a great retention rate, but this 
year we have lost three students due to attendance issues. The NHLA certificate had six students enrolled. 

36/62



We have eight applications for the fall semester that are matriculated. The Hardwood Manufactures 
Certificate offered for the Hardwood Manufactures Association (HMA) in a short 16 week program was well 
attended with five attendees.  The HMA is country wide so employers are from a variety of different states.  

 RECRUITMENT:  Members felt we need to use a promotional video to promote the program. Wage 
information must be shared along with showing the types of jobs in this industry. Troy Brown informed the 
group that HMA has a video that is excellent and NTC could link to that on their website. The committee felt 
NTC should include a link to Langlade County recreational activities to show what is available for students 
on the Antigo Campus.  Members felt that the Antigo Campus should increase their appeal to students. The 
committee suggested that the campus should have a designated area for students to interact and develop a 
student community atmosphere.  Members suggested that having a pool table, lounge area and basketball 
court would have a positive impact on recruitment.  

 CLUB UPDATE:  Club is active with several projects.  Elections were held.  Club is doing well.   

 WOOD TECHNOLOGY OPEN HOUSE:  Wood Technology Open House was held on March 21, 2018.   
Fourteen companies were in attendance trying to recruit our students for multiple locations. The range of 
salaries was from $19-$23 per hour. Travis shared with companies what programs we offer, and also which 
Continuing Education classes would benefit their employees.  

 HARDWOOD MANUFACTURERS CERTIFICATE: Employers within Hardwood Manufacturers Association 
have employees that need these courses. One company has already agreed to send employees every 
September. This cost is $3,000, local employers can’t train them for the price of this certificate. The HMA is 
country wide so employers are from a variety of different states. 

 EQUIPMENT UPDATE:  We have submitted to acquire a vacuum press kiln.  It was decided that the only way 
to afford this piece of equipment was to have it subsidized by a grant or business partner match.  Travis has 
been actively trying to acquire funding through Wisconsin Development Corporation, Forest Products 
Team, the DNR, and Great Lakes Kiln Drying Association.  This kiln would take 800 board feet with a drying 
time of four hours.  If we acquire the kiln, we could also offer contracts through Business & Industry for 
revenue.  We will be the only institution in the United States that has this capability.  The kiln company has 
given us a substantial discount.    

 WOOD TECHNOLOGY DISCOVERY DAYS: The Wood Technology Discovery Days was held this past February.  
We had two students sign up for the program the day of the event which was great and they were awarded 
an extra $500 scholarship for committing on this day.  Having a career coach on the campus along with 
alumni for this day was a plus. 

 BUSINESS & CONTINUING EDUCATION OPPORTUNITIES: Presentations were made recently to different 
groups including the Lake States Lumber Association and the Stainable Forestry Conference. We had six 
students attend the Moulder Training in January, which we ran again in March, and will run on June 6-8th 
due to the high demand for this training. It is a hands on training at a cost of $700 per student. Even with 
the limited enrollment, this is a profitable offering for the college. The college is looking at doing more 
Continuing Education training.  The Saw Filers Certificate is helping to fill a huge demand for saw filers. We 
are looking to offer this saw filing training in conjunction with Menominee Saw in Michigan and Saw Pro Inc. 
from Montana.  Saw Pro would be providing the trainer for the training.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

37/62



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2018  Program Name: IT Programs 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Wayne Pierce (Aspirus), Molly Diers (Aspirus), Joni Van Ooyen (CoVantage Credit Union), Elgin Hushbeck 
(CGI), Joel Hynes (PC Portals), Julie Henrichs (City-County IT), Matthew Hall (Greenheck Fan Corp), Andrew 
Hale (Dirks Group), Jeff Dirks (Dirks Group), Kevin Sather (Invizion), Emmet McBride (DC Everest School 
District) 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Jake Seever (Instructional Assistant), Kimberly Reed 
(Faculty), Ruth Muschinske (Faculty), Calvin Thorne 
(Faculty), Jamie Chavez (Faculty), Marie Auner 
(Faculty), Chris Severson (Dean, ScET), Gregg 
Husband (Faculty), Tracy Brewer (Business 
Development Manager), Sarah Watson (General 
Studies Faculty), Dominic Gruetzmacher (Faculty), 
Mitch Block (Academic Advisor), Ellen Anderson (VC 
Academic Advisor), Raymond Gruetzmacher 
(Faculty), Angela Reimer (Program Development 
Specialist), Clay Hess (Faculty), Jake Schneider 
(Faculty) 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Agenda 1: All present introduced themselves and the organizations they represent. 

 Agenda 2: The minutes were reviewed. A sign-in sheet was circulated. 

 Agenda 3: The focus of the advisory committee meeting was to revisit proposed curriculum modifications 

to several associate degree and technical diploma offerings to ensure that the changes recommended by 

faculty would deliver hirable graduates upon completion of the appropriate credential.  

o The products reviewed and approved by the advisory committee are as follows: Business 

Analyst AAS, IT-Network Specialist AAS, IT-Software Developer AAS, IT-Web Designer AAS, IT-

Mobile Applications AAS, IT-Computer Support Specialist AAS, IT-Network Technician TD, IT-

Software Developer Specialist TD, IT-User Experience Programmer TD, IT-Web Design 

Specialist TD, IT-Help Desk TD, IT-Mobile Programmer TD, and IT-Computer Support 

Technician TD.  

o The advisory committee endorsed the suspension of the following Technical Diplomas: 

IT-Microsoft Office, IT-Health Care Services for IT Professional, IT-Mobile Web Development 

Specialist, IT-Web Design, IT-Microsoft.NET Programmer, IT-Database Programmer, and 

IT-Software Project Manager.   

 Agenda 4:  
o Adjunct Discussion: Chris invited those interested in sharing their knowledge and expertise in 

a classroom setting to consider joining NTC’s team as an adjunct faculty member. If 
interested, please connect with Chris at seversonc@ntc.edu.  

o Chris shared that Marie Auner will be retiring at the end of this semester. Marie has shared 
her knowledge with NTC’s students for 34 years. She will be greatly missed. 

 Agenda 5: The next advisory committee meeting will take place on Wednesday, 11/14/18, 4:00 PM. 

 

38/62



 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: May 16, 2018 Program Name: Electromechanical 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Jim King (Greenheck Fan Corporation), Randy Beck (Forward Electronics), Rick Wilson (Nicolet Plastics), 
Brandon Rindfleisch (A&B Process Systems), Mike Henrichs (Sierra Pacific Windows), Richard Buhr (Norlen), 
Robert Fromm (Northwest Petroleum), Tom Mroczenski (Wausau Tile), Wesley Hoffman (Rocket Industrial), 
Paul Smith (Greenheck Fan Corporation), Ryan Hall (Rocket Industrial), Brady Hoes (Loos Machine & 
Automation), Dave Tanger (Marathon Technologies), Andrew Marvin (Harley Davidson), Fred Wenszell 
(Harley Davidson) 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Michael Hladilek (Faculty), Tracy Brewer (Business 
Development Manager), Chris Severson (Dean, ScET), 
Bryan Schroder (Faculty), Mike Rhyner (Faculty), 
Dustin VanDeWeerd (Faculty) 

  

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 Agenda 1: All present introduced themselves and the organizations they represent. 

 Agenda 2: The minutes were reviewed. A sign-in sheet was circulated among those in attendance. 

 Agenda 3:  

o Student Projects Review: Overall, the advisory committee members were extremely impressed 

with the projects the students presented. They found it encouraging to see the passion 

students displayed through their creativity and were very impressed with how engaged the 

students were. They also admired how much each students strove for excellence. Faculty 

commented on how interesting it was to observe students design and develop robots in 

preparation for RoboGames and their growth/evolution from student to professional. Overall, 

it appeared that many of the projects were functional. Advisory committee members were 

impressed with both the technical skills and soft skills the students demonstrated. It was nice 

to observe the willingness to engage in open dialog. This is important when preparing to enter 

into the workforce. When engaging students, they seemed to have a clear vision of where they 

plan to be once they graduate. Further, the students asked advisory committee members how 

their degree had real-world application (career exploration). 

 Agenda 4: 

o Industry Trends: Overall, the advisory committee members shared there is high demand for 
Electromechanical professionals. NTC’s program provides a solid foundational training to new 
and incumbent work force. It’s important to understand the advancement in technology and its 
impact on industry. One challenge is the level of technical need is higher than it was a decade 
ago, which impact opportunities. Unlike other career paths, graduates from the 
Electromechanical program have a plethora of opportunities ranging a variety of industries.  

o Program Information 

 Enrollment Report: For the Spring 2018 term, the Electromechanical program had 13 

first semester students, 16 second semester students, 6 third semester students and 

20 fourth semester students. There are 72 students taking 30 different courses 

through the Flexible Learning environment. Fall 2018 applications to enter the 

Electromechanical associate degree program total 30 with several months prior to the 

39/62



semester start in August. There also 4 fall applications for either a certificate or 

technical diploma credential. 

 Electromechanical Club: EM Club attended RoboGames 2018 in Pleasanton, CA (April 

27-29, 2018, http://robogames.net/index.php). This was an exciting learning 

experience for the nine students that participated. The group arrived in California 

Thursday and participated at the event all day Friday and Saturday prior to being 

eliminated Saturday evening. Beyond growing their technical skills as they evolved to 

meet the challenges of the competition, the students exercised soft skills, such as 

team work and collaboration. As this is an international event, students had the 

opportunity to engage groups/participants/vendors from all over the world. It was 

determined that should the EM Club participate next year, they will reduce the 

number of participant to four. 

 Automation Program: NTC is hosting a listening session (5:30-7:00). The focus is 

whether NTC should expand the electromechanical program by adding an automation 

associate degree program. Chris encouraged those able to stay and participate in 

discussion. 

o Curriculum/Assessment 

 Canvas: Bryan Schroder shared that NTC is transitioning its learning management 

system from Blackboard to Canvas. The goal is to have content migrated by June 1. 

o Equipment/Facilities 

 Capital Equipment: NTC will be acquiring over the next fiscal year the following items: 
(2) Fenceless LR Mate 200Id/4s WITH r-30Ib Education, (10) The Solar Power Training 
System, (1) Table Top Mill Machine for EM Project Class, (20) AB Micrologix 11 PLC, 
(12) L33ER Compact Logix PLC Processors, (1) 2-Sided Fluid Power Trainer, (8) AB 
Powerflex Motro 525 Drives, (1) Band Saw  

 HMI Trainers: NTC has purchased (12) PanelView 7 to replace old HMI Trainer 

equipment. 

o NSF Grant: 1st NSF grant NTC has received. NTC received this grant focused on science, 
technology, engineering, math, and computational thinking.  The goal of the grant is to train 
others (high school students) on a variety of STEM related activities and have those individuals 
conduct those activities with others at their school and in their community.  Doing this will 
grow the excitement and the awareness of STEM in hopes that students will choose STEM 
related career paths. 

o Continuing Education/Business & Industry initiatives: Tracy Brewer shared the role of 

Continuing Education and Business & Industry. They deliver customized training for incumbent 

work force on site. Training is designed to meet the needs of the organization. Business & 

Industry works closely with industry to increase productivity (Lean, 5S, process improvement). 

There are numerous continuing education and customized training opportunities available to 

industry. For more information, please contact Tracy at brewer@ntc.edu. 

 Agenda 5: The next advisory committee will take place Wednesday, 12/12/18; 4:00 PM. Included in the 

communication will be information regarding the EM Projects Presentation prior to the meeting. 

 

40/62



41/62



42/62



43/62



44/62



45/62



46/62



47/62



48/62



49/62



50/62



51/62



52/62



53/62



54/62



55/62



56/62



57/62



58/62



59/62



60/62



61/62



62/62


	August Board Agenda
	Approval of meeting minutes from July 9, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

	Approve Draft 3-Year Facility Plan 

	Draft FY2019-20 Facilities Three-Year Plan Sumarry - Copy
	Additions_ Antigo – Merrill Candidate Physical Ability Test (CPAT) Addition 

	Personnel Report 

	Receipts and Expenditures  

	Business &amp; Industry Annual Report 

	Draft CEO Goals 

	Establish WTCS District Boards Association 2018-2019 Committee Assignments 

	2018-2019 College Representatives Blank Form
	Upcoming Meetings_Events 

	Advisory Meeting Minutes 

	Good News 

	Good News - August 2018

